
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Governing Body Workshop 

Date of Meeting: January 2 2013 

Time of Meeting: 6:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 1 of 5 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The Workshop Meeting of the Governing Body was called to order by Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
 
Adequate Notice Statement 
Mayor Bieri read the following statement: 
 
Please note that in accordance with Chapter 231, Public Laws of 1975 of New Jersey, adequate advance 
notice of this Workshop meeting was advertised in the Herald News in its issue of December 30, 2012 
copies were provided to the Suburban Trends, the Record, Star Ledger, and posted continuously on the 
bulletin board in the main corridor of the Town Hall and on file in the Office of the Township Clerk. 
 
Please also make note of all fire and emergency exits – located to the left, right, and rear of this room - for 
use in case of an emergency.  Thank you. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Bieri led all in attendance in a salute to the flag. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Present:  Councilmembers Ada Erik, Mike Hensley, Vivienne Erk, Edward Rosone, 

Luciano Signorino, Carlla Horton, Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
Absent:  None. 
Also Present:   Township Clerk Antoinette Battaglia, Township Attorney Frederick Semrau. 
 

Agenda No. II 
 
Reading of or Approval of Unapproved Minutes 
 
None. 
 

Agenda No.  III 
Meetings 
 
Mayor Bieri noted the future meeting schedule: 
 
January 23, 2013 Regular Meeting   February 6, 2013 Workshop Meeting 
February 20, 2013 Regular Meeting 
 

Agenda No. IV 
Public Comments 
 
Mayor Bieri opened the meeting to the public after advising that there is a five-minute limit for each 
speaker. 
 
Tim Wagner, 835 Westbrook Road, West Milford welcomed the new council members and wished 
everyone a Happy New Year.  He filed an OPRA request and received a response including the Gary 
Steele application to put up a sign.  Mr. Steele, he said, represented that he represents the American 
Atheist Group and he does not.  The application is invalid and the permit should never have been granted.  
At the last meeting, he said, we heard that Mr. Steele has misrepresented himself before. This time he did 
so to make a political statement on public property. It created controversy. He questioned whether the wind 
or a person took the sign down.  It was a bully tactic.  If someone took down the sign so be it.  Most people 
would be glad to see that offensive sign taken down. Town officials should look at this permit.  He was 
supposed to provide an insurance policy.  His permit does go to January 5

th
 so he has the right to put up a 

sign again. We should check with the atheist group.  He asked Councilwoman Erik to look at reactivating 
the DARE program.   
 
Doris Aaronson, 19 Bearfort Road, West Milford said she strongly suggests that Council discuss the 
seasonal displays on Township property after the mayhem this past year. They are not appropriate. There 
were only three displays, two of which were controversial. A Jewish menorah and an atheist banner.  The 
menorah came from a Wanaque resident, a rabbi of the Chabad sect. At a council meeting she read a 
traditional Jewish blessing and the result was that the rabbi called her a liar. Those comments were not in 
accord with the peace & love appropriate to this season. The atheist banner was vandalized.  Councilman 
Smolinski publicly supported vandalism of the banner and he said funds would be available to support that.  
After the Council meeting Ms. Aaronson said she heard Tim Wagner say that since Gary Steele had 
provided the banner and he said he would get Steele’s wife fired from her job for doing so.  That was not 
appropriate.  The menorah was removed when Hanukkah was over. The banner was destroyed and 
removed. That left the large Christian tree and Christian nativity. So for weeks we have had only two 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Governing Body Workshop 

Date of Meeting: January 2 2013 

Time of Meeting: 6:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 2 of 5 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Christian symbols on public property. That is not proper. She asked Council to discuss this further and to 
better represent the people of the Township.  There should be a peaceful purpose to this.   
 
Tim Wagner, from the audience asked for a point of order. 
 
Tim Wagner said that Ms. Aaronson’s comments were out of line. He never said he would have Gary 
Steele’s wife fired from her job. He hopes Ada Erik & Bob Nicholson would confirm that because they were 
there.  He did not say that and it is out of line.   
 
There being no more comments from the public Councilman Rosone moved to close the public portion of 
the meeting. 
------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Rosone      Seconded:  Signorino 
Voted Aye:   Erik, Hensley, Erk, Rosone, Signorino, Horton. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda No. V 
Council Comments 
 
Council President Signorino said that he has no reason to believe the atheist sign was vandalized.  Unless 
there is proof it should not be said. He is disturbed to hear that there is the potential that someone is 
impersonating an elected official.  If that is the case, it is a serious matter.  Mr. Semrau stated that the 
allegations pertain to the BOE so is not within the Township’s jurisdiction and he noted that the remark is 
an allegation.  Council President Signorino said it is improper and should not be done.   
 
Mr. Semrau said concerns about the permitting process should be addressed if this matter comes forth 
later this year.  Perhaps there could be a subcommittee to review guidelines.  Township officials cannot 
say an application was valid or invalid because no guidelines were established.  Council President 
Signorino said the form was incomplete.  He said we must be more diligent moving forward.  Mr. Semrau 
said that the guidelines were not established by Council so the administration simply used the means 
available to them.  Mayor Bieri agreed saying that there should be specifics.  Council President Signorino 
asked that a committee be formed immediately and Mr. Semrau said that he was of the understanding that 
this was simply for this holiday season.  He asked that the Council clarify that at this time.  Ms. Gage said 
that perhaps the Council may wish to suspend the decision to allow any holiday displays until all this is 
ironed out.  Council President Signorino motion to conclude holiday displays from January 6

th
 until formal 

procedures are in place concluding this cycle on January 6th.  Councilman Rosone seconded the motion.  
Councilwoman Horton said that she questions the language.  She expressed concern that this is 
preferential to those who had holidays during this period.  Mr. Semrau noted there has been almost a 30-
day period where anyone could have come forward to put a display out.  Now the governing body would 
like to conclude that.  He believes this most prudent.  There are no pending applications that would be 
denied.  By unanimous roll call vote the motion to end the holiday season and thus the holiday displays on 
January 6

th
 passed.   

 
Councilwoman Erik said she does not know what happened to the DARE program and she will look into 
that.  She recalled that the BOE has said there is no drug problem.  She voted no on religious symbols 
from the start. She knew something would happen.  Prior to signs going up we had a storm called Sandy 
when one could witness the force of wind.  She does not believe that the sign was destroyed as a result of 
wind sheer.  Then the angel would have come down too. That is wrong.  The tree out front has always 
been a Christmas tree.  The lights are the problem, not the tree.   
 

Agenda No. VI 
Discussion Items 
 

1) Ordinance – Amend Chapter 135, Fees, of the Township Code – The Council gave consensus 
to proceed to introduction and asked for clarification from the CS&R Director about fees for a 
non-resident at Bubbling Springs sponsored by a resident.   

2) Ordinance – Amend Chapter 271-2, Police Service Charges – The Council gave consensus to 
proceed to introduction at the next meeting. 

3) Contract – City of Newark – the Council gave consensus to proceed. 
4) Contract – NY/NJ Trails Consultant – Ms. Gage said this resolution would authorize the hiring 

of a consultant to pick up where a prior consultant has simply disappeared.  The Council gave 
consensus to proceed.  Mr. Semrau asked that we clarify who will be assigned to this and said 
the agreement should state that timetables must be met.   

5) Contract – Metal Recycling – the Council gave consensus to proceed.   
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Governing Body Workshop 

Date of Meeting: January 2 2013 

Time of Meeting: 6:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 3 of 5 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Agenda No. VII 

Action Items   
 
The Township Council took action on the following items: 
 

Agenda No. VII 1 
 

~ Resolution No. 2013- 043 ~ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC AND STATE OF 
NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER FOR THE PURCHASE OF FUEL 

 
WHEREAS, It is recommended to approve a second change order for the purchase of Gasoline 

originally awarded to Allied Oil, Inc. in the amount of $212,000.00; and, 
 

WHEREAS, resolution 2012-393 represented a change order for the rising cost of fuel in the 
amount of $8,300.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, this change order in the amount of $24,000.00 is due to the increase in fuel 

consumption; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified as to the availability of funds for this change 

order, said funds to be encumbered from a sub- account listed under the fuel line item 2-01-31-460-315. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Township of West 

Milford, County of Passaic, State of New Jersey, the following: 
 

1. The Administrator be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract 
amendment with Allied Oil, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $24,000.00 representing an 
increase to the original contract amount not to exceed $244,300.00 

2. The Township’s Chief Financial Officer has certified the availability of funds for same. 
3. This resolution and contract shall be available for public inspection in the office of the 

Municipal Clerk. 
 
Adopted:  January 2, 2013 
 
Discussion: Council President Signorino recalled that we approved a change order last year and staff 
is now asking for three times as much. Ms. Gage said that Hurricane Sandy and escalated prices caused 
this. We are underestimating our needs and that will be addressed in the budget.  Council President 
Signorino asked if the new fuel system will help and Ms. Gage expressed hope that it will. Council 
President Signorino said the additional charges for fuel are in the bill list and Ms. Gage noted that this 
resolution allows us to pay those bills.  Councilman Hensley asked about FEMA reimbursement and Ms. 
Gage said that while the Township is anticipating reimbursement from FEMA the process is with the 
Congress who have not authorized the funding as yet.  The Township has submitted the paperwork but 
Congress failed to act.   
------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Erik    Seconded:  Rosone   
Voted Aye:   Erik, Hensley, Erk, Rosone, Signorino, Horton. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Agenda No. VIII 
 

~ Resolution No. 2013- 044 ~ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Treasurer has submitted to the members of the Township Council a 
report listing individual disbursement checks prepared by his office in payment of amounts due by the 
Township. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Treasurer’s report of checks 
prepared by him be approved and issued as follows: 
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Governing Body Workshop 

Date of Meeting: January 2 2013 

Time of Meeting: 6:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 4 of 5 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Acct # Account Name Amount 

1 Current Account $116,769.44 

2 Reserve Account 1,279.64 

3 Animal Control Trust 1,189.00 

6 Capital 60,623.93 

7 Grants 1,130.40 

8 Refuse                                       353.10 

9 Refunds. 0.00 

12 General Ledger 0.00 

16 Heritage Trust 0.00 

14 Open Space Trust 0.00 

17 Trust 1,495.00 

18 Development Escrow 19,058.10 

19 COAH 0.00 

20 Special Reserve 0.00 

11 Assessment Trust 0.00 

Total  $201,898.61 

Less Refund Resolution  

Actual Bill List $201,898.61 

Other Payments  0.00 

Total Expenditures $201,898.61 
 
Adopted: January 2, 2013 
 
Council President Signorino asked about West Milford Fire Company, saying that everyone is getting 
$5,000 except Fire Company #1.  Ms. Gage stated that this is insurance reimbursement.  Council 
President Signorino said that on several pages there are supplies for police department and he questioned 
their being ordered so late in the 2012 year.  Councilwoman Horton agreed asking if these orders were 
placed based on the concept of spend it or lose.  Ms. Gage advised that many departments use the 
philosophy that they should be conservative in spending to ensure that emergent and true needs are met.  
There is also an acute awareness, she said, that the Council has little tolerance for expending beyond 
appropriations.  It is sound purchasing practice to plan spending practices in this manner. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Signorino   Seconded:  Erik 
Voted Aye:   Erik, Hensley, Erk, Rosone, Signorino, Horton. 
Voted Nay:   None.   
Motion carried. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------  

Agenda No. IX 
 
Reports of Mayor, Administrator, Council Members, Attorney and Clerk 
 
Councilman Rosone wished everyone a happy & prosperous new year. He welcomed Councilmemmbers 
Erk & Hensley.   
 
Council President Signorino wished everyone a Happy New Year.  He welcomed Councilmembers Erk & 
Hensley and asked for consensus to move on a joint BOE committee.  Ms. Gage said she plans to put 
that on February agenda for discussion. She sent a letter to the BOE asking for a mission statement and 
for some guidance.  She is hoping for a response before the February workshop.  Council President 
Signorino said he appreciates that but regardless he would like to see this as an ongoing committee not a 
temporary venture. He would like this ASAP.  The Council gave consensus to discuss this matter at the 
February workshop meeting.  Mr. Signorino thanked his Council colleagues for his Council President 
nomination. 
 
Councilwoman Horton wished everyone a Happy New Year and welcomed the new Councilmembers 
opining that this will be a great year.  She thanked her Council colleagues for helping her in her first year 
adding that she loves her liaison appointments.  She said she would ask for a discussion about the  
library because it remains an outstanding issue from 2012 and decisions must be made.  The library 
board, she said, works hard and they deserve that.  They need an answer from the Council.  She thanked 
residents for the privilege of serving in this capacity and wished everyone well in 2013.   
 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Governing Body Workshop 

Date of Meeting: January 2 2013 

Time of Meeting: 6:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 5 of 5 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Mayor Bieri welcomed the new Council people noting that she looks forward to working with them.  She 
wished everyone a happy, safe & peaceful year.   
 
Township Administrator Gage advised that AFSCME 2275 negotiations are scheduled for Friday.  The 
new finance system is being implemented and she thinks it will improve the process.  The new system will 
be effective throughout 2013 and it will allow gathering of greater information.  She is currently meeting 
with departments on budgets and is ready to discuss the format for budget meetings.  Last year it was full 
Council as opposed to a committee system.  Council President Signorino said the subcommittees 
appeared to work well and Councilmembers Rosone & Erik agreed.  Mr. Semrau said the advantage is 
you can have discussions about employment type issues that cannot take place with the full Council.  He 
recommends two members for each committee to avoid the risk of voting issues.  Notwithstanding all the 
discussions about that a final budget decision requires the full Council and a two-thirds vote is required by 
law.  He has found that more gets done with the subcommittee format.  Council President Signorino said 
he would prefer committees of three because the primary function of the Council is the budget.  People, 
he said, do not often miss meetings.  Mr. Semrau asked for an opportunity to confer with the 
Administrator on that.  Councilwoman Horton said she is concerned about transparency.  She is okay with 
committees but she would like the meetings to be open. Ms. Gage said she would report from the 
subcommittees to the full Council.  There would ultimately be discussion of full Council on budget matters.  
Council President Signorino said he appreciates Councilwoman Horton’s concerns but subcommittees 
only supplement the Council’s ability to have open discussions.  The Council gave consensus for 
subcommittees to review the budget and Ms. Gage said she will present a schedule. 
 
Mr. Semrau wished everyone a Happy New Year and thanked the Mayor & Council for his appointment. 
When he first came here he was warned not to apply but he is glad to be here.  There will be discussion 
at next meeting in executive session about Triple T Construction & the recycling center contract.  
Samples were taken at Wallisch he said and the Township is waiting for phase II analysis results.   

 
Agenda No. X 

 
Appointments and Resignations 
 
None.   

Agenda No. XI 
Executive Session  

 
~ Resolution No. 2013- 045 ~ 

 
MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
NO ACTION TAKEN 

 
Agenda No. XII 

 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, the Township Council adjourned the meeting 
at 8:11:25 p.m.  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Rosone     Seconded:  Signorino 
Voted Aye:   Erik, Hensley, Erk, Rosone, Signorino, Horton. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Approved: May 1, 2013 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
MAYOR BETTINA BIERI 
PRESIDING OFFICER 

 
 
 

_________________________________ 
ANTOINETTE BATTAGLIA 

TOWNSHIP CLERK 


